          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH,

          8  MENTAL RETARDATION, ALCOHOLISM,

             DRUG ABUSE And DISABILITY SERVICES

          9

             -------------------------------x

         10

         11                 October 20, 2005

                            Start:  10:25 a.m.

         12                 Recess: 11:55 a.m.

         13                 City Hall

                            Council Chambers

         14                 New York, New York

         15

                  B E F O R E:

         16

                         MARGARITA LOPEZ

         17                                Chairperson,

         18

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Gale Brewer

         19                                 Helen Foster

                                            Kendall Stewart

         20                                 Annabel Palma

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Doctor Myla Harrison

          4  Assistant Commissioner

             Department of Hygiene and Mental Health

          5  New York City

          6  Doctor Ann Murphy

             Early Childhood Center

          7  Albert Einstein College of Medicine

          8  Denise Giamanco

             Coordinator

          9  Bi-Lingual Services

         10  Doctor Shaylee Perez

             Foster Care Project

         11

             Lilliam Barrios-Paoli

         12  President

             Safe Space

         13

             Robert Tobing

         14  Assistant Executive Director

             University Settlement Society

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.  This

          3  meeting is going to begin at this moment.

          4                 Good morning, citizens of New York

          5  City, and thank you for taking the time to attend

          6  today's hearing.

          7                 My name is Margarita Lopez and I am

          8  the Chair of the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

          9  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability

         10  Services.

         11                 I would also like to introduce my

         12  fellow Committee members at this moment.  And I am

         13  going to ask each and every one of them to introduce

         14  themselves and identify what they represent.

         15                 Starting from my left to my right,

         16  because I love my left, always.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Good afternoon.

         18  I am Annabel Palma, Council member for District 18

         19  in the Bronx.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good morning.

         21  Council Member Helen Diane Foster from the 16th

         22  District in the Bronx.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Good morning.

         24  I am Council Member Stewart.  I represent the best

         25  part of New York, which is Central Brooklyn, where
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          2  New York begins.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You see, that is

          4  the problem with you.  Okay, Andy?

          5                 MR. WALLACE: Andrew Wallace, City

          6  Council Finance Division.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: People in Brooklyn

          8  need help because they are like a little bit out of

          9  touch, the representatives in there, they think that

         10  Brooklyn is the center of the planet.  And for the

         11  purpose of everyone who is listening, the center of

         12  the planet is Manhattan.  Okay?  No, it is

         13  Manhattan, the center of the planet.  Mari?

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Mari De

         15  Pedro, Counsel to the committee.  Good morning.

         16                 MS. CULP: Good morning, Jennifer

         17  Culp, Legislative Policy Analyst to the committee.

         18                 MS. EMERMAN: Anne Emerman, Staff to

         19  the committee.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And the

         21  Sergeant-At-Arms, they are going to introduce

         22  themselves.  Those are the individuals that take

         23  care of all of us here and conduct the order in this

         24  place.

         25                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS COLLAZO: Seargent at
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          2  Arms, Eddie Herberto Collazo.

          3                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS RODRIGUEZ: J.C.

          4  Rodriguez.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you very

          6  much to everyone.

          7                 Today we will be examining the

          8  council Children on the Five Mental Health

          9  Initiative, an initiative that born out of the

         10  desperate need of children who witness violence in

         11  the neighborhood or in the family setting.  An

         12  initiative that born out of the outrage that this

         13  committee failed, the members of this committee and

         14  the chair of this committee when we find out that

         15  services to those children do not exist whatsoever.

         16  And this initiative born in this council and is due

         17  to the work, that the members of this committee had

         18  done, and all of them deserve the credit.

         19                 On December 8, 2003, we held our

         20  first meeting on Mental Health Services for Children

         21  Under Five.  It was held in response to mental

         22  health professionals regarding the rise in severe

         23  emotional and behavioral disorders among infants,

         24  toddlers and pre- school age children.  At the

         25  hearing, we also heard from a number of
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          2  institutions.  We hear about the obstacles in the

          3  effort to provide mental health services for these

          4  young children, and the lack of facilities to

          5  provide these services.  It came to our attention

          6  that many licensed mental health clinics with the

          7  City, did not accept the children as patients.  And

          8  the providers believed there was not Monday to serve

          9  children under the age of five.

         10                 On March 1st, 2004, we held our

         11  second hearing on this topic and we heard testimony

         12  regarding this scarcity of programs serving children

         13  under five, and discuss the lack of significant

         14  financial resources for this program.  At that time,

         15  Council Member Helen Foster was very concerned about

         16  the issue connected to the Bronx, where the problem

         17  of children showing these symptoms, were very, very

         18  scary.  We found out that the children of our City

         19  were being under served, and that is the reason why

         20  I am so proud of my work.  That is why I fought so

         21  hard to create the Children Under Five Mental Health

         22  Initiative, together with the council members that

         23  are members of this committee.

         24                 This former initiative originated in

         25  Fiscal Year 2005, with approximately 1.2 million in
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          2  City tax levy funding to provide mental health

          3  services for children under the age of five. This

          4  was the first time funds have been designated in the

          5  mental health budget to address the unique niche of

          6  this particular age group.

          7                 For Fiscal Year 2006, we have

          8  restored this funding. Today we will take a close

          9  look at this initiative, and hear from some of the

         10  funding recipients.

         11                 The Committee members will also be

         12  considered for a vote on Intro number 724, a local

         13  law to amend the municipal code of the City of New

         14  York in relation to rent increase extension for

         15  person with disabilities.  The disability rent

         16  increase exemption, protects income eligible New

         17  Yorkers, disabled residents who live in rent control

         18  or rent stabilized apartments, from increases in

         19  their rent.  Intro number 724 is a necessary

         20  amendment because the current City law does not

         21  allow for exclusion of certain items from the

         22  definition of income and aggregated disposable

         23  income, that are provided for in a State law, in

         24  connection with the program.  In order to insure

         25  that the administrative code mirrors the State law,
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          2  and to prevent any confusion in the future regarding

          3  the definition of income and aggregated disposable

          4  income for this program, the council is hereby

          5  amended the legislation.

          6                 At this moment, I would like to call

          7  for a vote on the changing of Intro 724 and I will

          8  go by calling the roll.

          9                 COUNSEL CLERK: Council Member Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I vote aye.

         11                 COUNSEL CLERK: Foster.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL CLERK: Stewart.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL CLERK: Palma.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL CLERK: In a vote of four in

         18  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         19  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council members

         20  please sign the committal report.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: At this moment, I

         22  am going to let the roll call open for the council

         23  members who have not arrived yet.  And after that,

         24  we will close it.

         25                 Make sure that everybody signs the
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          2  document that you need to sign before anyone leaves.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 At this moment we are going to

          5  proceed with the witnessing.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: At this

          7  moment we will call Doctor Myla Harrison from the

          8  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Tremendous

         10  improvement from Doctor Sederer.  Tell him that I

         11  said that.  Things are getting better in that

         12  department.  I see more women, that is fantastic.

         13  And speaking about progressive politics inside of

         14  the Mayor's office, I like it.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: At this

         16  moment, can you raise your right hand?  And will you

         17  swear or affirm that the testimony you will provide

         18  is truthful in all concerns?

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MS. HARRISON: Good morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Good morning.

         22                 MS. HARRISON: I am Doctor Myla

         23  Harrison, Assistant Commissioner for the office of

         24  Child and Adolescent Services in the Division of

         25  Mental Hygiene at the New York City Department of
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          2  Health and Mental Hygiene.

          3                 I want to thank Chairwoman Lopez and

          4  the committee for holding these hearings, and for

          5  your continued commitment to Mental Health Services

          6  for New Yorkers.

          7                 I would like to begin by placing this

          8  testimony in context and briefly recapping earlier

          9  testimony presented by the Department of Health and

         10  Mental Hygiene at hearings held by this committee,

         11  and then go on to discuss new developments and

         12  updates in Early Childhood Mental Health Programming

         13  in New York City.

         14                 For a long time, the under five

         15  population was not treated by the mental health

         16  service system.  Children age zero to three were

         17  considered the domain of the early intervention

         18  program. Many mental health providers consider the

         19  population off limits, whether for clinical or

         20  logistical reasons.  Insufficient training was

         21  available for professionals to gain the expertise

         22  necessary to treat this very complex and vulnerable

         23  population. Some agencies believed that they were

         24  not legally able to serve children under five, and a

         25  majority of mental health professionals questioned
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          2  whether it was even possible to accurately diagnose

          3  and treat children in such early stages of

          4  development.  Only a handful of community- based

          5  agencies provide a mental health treatment to very

          6  young children and their families.

          7                 There has been a significant increase

          8  in understanding around providing mental health

          9  treatment to children under five in recent years.

         10  We now know that helping children develop socially

         11  and emotionally in the context of strong parental

         12  and care giver relationships, treats current

         13  emotional problems and leads to healthier social and

         14  emotional development, that has a positive impact on

         15  school readiness.  Emotional disturbances do not

         16  suddenly occur when a child enters school.  Instead,

         17  preconditions may exist within the family and child

         18  from birth, that can lead to problems in social and

         19  emotional development in the absence of appropriate

         20  intervention.  There is a growing body of research

         21  and knowledge about effective identification,

         22  diagnosis and treatment of children under five.  We

         23  know that effective treatment is often conducted in

         24  the context of the family, focusing on a child's

         25  relationships with his or her primary care givers.

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  We know that interventions can be conducted outside

          3  of traditional mental health centers, in natural

          4  settings like homes, day care centers, pediatric

          5  centers and nursery schools.

          6                 When we testified on this topic in

          7  March 2004, we discussed the need for clarity in the

          8  provider community on the legality of serving

          9  children under five in licensed outpatient mental

         10  health clinics.  Since then we have not only

         11  confirmed that it is legal, but sent letters to the

         12  New York City provider community at large,

         13  clarifying and encouraging them to include this

         14  population among the people they serve.

         15                 However, despite the expanding

         16  knowledge base, many barriers to providing these

         17  services remain.  There is still remarkably few

         18  professionals who have the necessary training and

         19  expertise, and are practicing in the public sector

         20  with this population.  Reimbursements rates remain

         21  low, and the medicaid neutrality cap makes it

         22  extremely difficult for mental health agencies to

         23  expand their capacities to treat additional

         24  populations.  Furthermore, treating young children

         25  in the context of their families in New York City
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          2  presents cultural and linguistic challenges that can

          3  make staffing even more difficult.

          4                 Despite the many challenges, we are,

          5  with the support of the council, and in partnership

          6  with community- based agencies, working to improve

          7  the capacity and quality of the mental health

          8  services for children under five.  In Fiscal Year

          9   '05, with City council designated funds, four

         10  community- based agencies were able to increase

         11  their capacity to target this population, by

         12  expanding their services and training clinicians.

         13  We look forward to continuing to apply lessons

         14  learned from Fiscal Year '06 to future mental health

         15  programming for children under five.

         16                 In addition to the council funded

         17  initiative, the Department of Health and Mental

         18  Hygiene continues to expand our capacity to provide

         19  mental health services to children of all ages. This

         20  year we are issuing a request for proposals to

         21  further expand mental health consultation and

         22  treatment services for children five and under.  We

         23  are also issuing RFP's to expand school- based

         24  mental health services, and to provide crisis

         25  intervention and treatment services designed to keep
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          2  children out of hospitals.  An RFP was just closed,

          3  and requests are being reviewed for the development

          4  of a City- wide children's Single Point of Access,

          5  or SPOA.  SPOA is designed to streamline all

          6  referrals to intensive mental health services for

          7  children with serious emotional disturbance, who

          8  would benefit from enrollment and specialized

          9  services, such as case management and home and

         10  community based waiver programs.

         11                 We are also currently developing a

         12  media campaign on the importance of the child/parent

         13  relationship which will include brochures and videos

         14  that will  be distributed to [pediatric clinics, WIC

         15  centers and other locations targeted to new mothers.

         16                 We have just begun our fourth year of

         17  the federally funded Coordinated Children's Services

         18  Initiative or CCSI, The family Network, formerly

         19  known as Keeping Families Together.  The vision of

         20  CCSI is to have providers and all service systems

         21  partner in a culturally and linguistically sensitive

         22  way to provide family driven care.  CCSI supports a

         23  New York City and borough presence at coordinated

         24  systems, monthly meetings and also provides care

         25  coordination for youths and their families who are
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          2  involved in at least two separate systems to ensure

          3  that they get their needs met.

          4                 Additionally, we are expanding

          5  transitional services for children age 16 to 24,

          6  another historically under served youth population,

          7  who have complex needs as they age out of the

          8  children's mental health system and enter the adult

          9  service system.

         10                 Finally, I want to acknowledge the

         11  role of our Early Intervention program that provides

         12  as an entitlement, services to the developmentally

         13  delayed children from birth to age three, including

         14  those with social and emotional delays.  The Early

         15  Intervention program is currently serving infants

         16  and toddlers through contracts with over 150

         17  community- based agencies throughout the City.

         18                 Despite all of these services, many

         19  young children do not receive the specialized and

         20  additional mental health treatment services that we

         21  need.  To assist us in understanding and tackling

         22  the needs of children under five, DOHMH participates

         23  in The Early Childhood Mental Health Task Force.

         24  This task force consists of a panel of experts from

         25  the fields of early intervention, mental health,
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          2  preschool special education, child care, foster care

          3  and the judicial and academic systems.  The task

          4  force, with Doctor Lloyd Sederer, Executive Deputy

          5  Director for Mental Health Hygiene Service, met with

          6  the New York State Office of Mental Health's

          7  Commissioner, Sharon Carpinello, to discuss the

          8  mental health needs of the children five and under.

          9  The task force also published a report entitled,

         10  Promoting the Mental Health and Healthy Development

         11  of New York's Infants, Toddlers and Preschoolers, A

         12  Call to Action, which contains several

         13  recommendations for improving services.

         14                 While we have made significant

         15  strides towards expanding the capacity and quality

         16  of mental health services for children five and

         17  under in New York City, much remains to be done. We

         18  continue to explore ways to overcome the barriers

         19  and challenges to such improvements and look forward

         20  to continued collaboration with Council.

         21                 I would like to thank you very much

         22  for the opportunity to testify today.  I will be

         23  happy to answer any questions you may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

         25  Council member, you have any questions at this
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          2  moment?  If you need to interrupt me, let me know.

          3  Okay?

          4                 I just want to begin asking the

          5  administration, it is at this point the

          6  administration fell, that the initiative that we put

          7  here together of our beginning to serve children

          8  under five by that initiative, will be expanded and

          9  embraced as a policy by the department, because by

         10  your testimony, that is what you are implying.  Did

         11  I understood that correctly?

         12                 MS. HARRISON: This age population is

         13  a priority population for us, it is, there is a task

         14  force, we sit on the task force.  Your group has

         15  also brought it to our attention.  We certainly are

         16  considering this group as a priority.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can you pull the

         18  microphone closer to you, because I do not hear you

         19  well?

         20                 MS. HARRISON: Sorry.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I am sorry, I am

         22  deaf in one ear. Sometimes people wonder why I speak

         23  loud.  It is that I am deaf in one ear and do not

         24  hear well.

         25                 The reason I am asking you this
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          2  question is, I am leaving the council this year and

          3  I am not going to be here next year.  I know there

          4  is a lot of council members that are not as

          5  passionate as I am about serving people with

          6  disabilities.  I know that.  And I know that

          7  somebody is going to be appointed to this committee

          8  that is going to fulfill my role in here.  But

          9  independently of that, I am concerned that the

         10  administration embrace this, the same way that I

         11  did.  Dr. Sederer has been excellent on

         12  understanding what the problem was in here, and I am

         13  very pleased about that.  But I want to make sure,

         14  on the record, that the administration understand

         15  that this initiative had to continue, and that we

         16  cannot go back to ignore the reality of these

         17  children, and what is the condition that they

         18  encounter themselves. And the connection that this

         19  has with domestic violence.  Can you comment on

         20  that?

         21                 MS. HARRISON: I think we are

         22  committed to that. Doctor Sederer has made the

         23  commitment to this population, and we have started

         24  by putting out this RFP from our offices that, it is

         25  a small step, but it is a step in the right
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          2  direction.  I think we need help to make sure it is

          3  going to happen, but we are committed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then I just want

          5  to make clear that I do not want to be disappointed

          6  to see next year when the budget come out, cutting

          7  this line.  This should not be cut.  And I want to

          8  encourage the administration very, very strongly,

          9  that if we really going to look at the question of

         10  domestic violence in this City, and if we really

         11  going to see the balance against children, one of

         12  the things that had to happen here, is to reflect it

         13  in the budget by this initiative that have been put

         14  in place. And this is a strong recommendation that I

         15  am making, and the recommendation is not going to be

         16  just by me saying this, because I am not going

         17  nowhere.  I am going to be involved in politics and

         18  my voice is going to get louder than it used to be

         19  before.  Okay? Then I hope that you can bring that

         20  message back to the administration in regard to

         21  this.

         22                 MS. HARRISON: I most certainly will

         23  bring that message back.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Now, I want to

         25  understand if the administration is contemplating
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          2  looking to the court relationship that exists, with

          3  domestic violence and the lack of treatment for the

          4  children that witness domestic violence, and the

          5  domestic violence go in two direction for me.  It is

          6  the domestic violence against children inside of the

          7  house that are gay, lesbian, transvestite or

          8  bisexual.  That is one aspect of domestic violence

          9  that we do not want to talk about it, and we do not

         10  want to address it.  It is there, it is real.  Those

         11  children get kicked out of the house.  Those

         12  children get mistreated, seriously.  And we do not

         13  want to talk about it and that is part of domestic

         14  violence.  And the other witnessing of domestic

         15  violence that is between the father and the mother.

         16  If you guys have been looking into this, and

         17  establish the court relationship that exists here,

         18  about the rate of domestic violence increasing so

         19  much in the City of New York.  Have you done any of

         20  that, or plan to do any of that?

         21                 MS. HARRISON: I do not have an answer

         22  for that at this point.  But we can go back and talk

         23  about it and get an answer back to you on that.  In

         24  terms of my office, I do not have an answer for

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then I just want

          3  to put this idea in your head.  Because from where I

          4  have been looking at this issue, I have been looking

          5  at this issue from that angle.  I am convinced that

          6  the way to stop domestic violence is stopping the

          7  cycle of violence.  I am convinced of that.  And the

          8  way that we are going to be able to do that, is if

          9  those children that are supposed to understand that

         10  behavior is not normal.  And that behavior is not

         11  acceptable.  And that behavior has to change, and

         12  that they should not embrace that behavior.  And I

         13  think I am right.  Therefore, the only thing that

         14  need to be confirmed is the department doing the

         15  study, and collecting the data, to see if it is a

         16  court relationship or not.

         17                 At this moment I need to ask you some

         18  technical questions that are going to be asked by

         19  Andy, because he is the man of the number.

         20                 MR. WALLACE: Just a couple of

         21  questions.  You mentioned the new RFP that would be

         22  exclusively for services for children under five.

         23  Do you have, has that been budgeted, how much that

         24  RFP will be funded at?

         25                 MS. HARRISON: We are budgeting it at
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          2  $400 thousand dollars.

          3                 MR. WALLACE: And is that new funding?

          4                 MS. HARRISON: It is previously un-

          5  allocated reinvestment funds.

          6                 MR. WALLACE: And what is the time

          7  line for, pardon me, for the release of the RFP, for

          8  people that apply, and when does it target on having

          9  the money reach the providers?

         10                 MS. HARRISON: Right.  We are working

         11  on it, so all of this will occur during this Fiscal

         12  Year.  The money will probably not reach the

         13  providers until the next Fiscal Year.

         14                 MR. WALLACE: And they would be three

         15  year contracts?

         16                 MS. HARRISON: With options to renew,

         17  sure.

         18                 MR. WALLACE: So, the RFP would be

         19  ready, sort of hitting the street, so to speak?

         20                 MS. HARRISON: It is hard to say.  We

         21  are working on it.  We are getting closer and we

         22  have to put a concept paper out that is 45 days of

         23  that.  So we are working on it with our ACCO.

         24  Office, our chief contracting office.  I hate to pin

         25  down a time, but it is one of our priorities.  We
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          2  are trying to get it out.

          3                 MR. WALLACE: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: As I was

          5  sitting here, some ideas came into my head.  And I

          6  wanted to know if there is, what we call a

          7  coordination of efforts to deal with children that

          8  might be involved, that might be caught up with the

          9  domestic violence.  If you will have a coordination

         10  of efforts with ACS and HRA, and those other

         11  departments to deal with these children, young

         12  children that, you know, might be caught up in this.

         13                 MS. HARRISON: That is a very good

         14  question.  I mentioned the Coordinated Children's

         15  Services Initiative, CCSI, which is not just a group

         16  that needs to coordinate services at a borough level

         17  and higher, but also to coordinate services around

         18  individual kids and families.  And so agencies, such

         19  as ACS and Mental Health, and a lot of other

         20  agencies, actually will come to the table to work

         21  around specific families and kids where those issues

         22  might come up to our attention.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, what you

         24  are saying is that when a case like that comes up,

         25  all the different departments are notified?
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          2                 MS. HARRISON: No.  First if there is

          3  a specific family that comes to the attention on

          4  CCSI, there will be a team that meets with the

          5  family and then brings in agencies that may be

          6  involved in that family's life, to address the needs

          7  of that particular family.  At a higher level, there

          8  are also borough- wide meetings where those sorts of

          9  issues can get discussed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I am just

         11  worried that when a child is with one agency because

         12  of the, let us take for example, homeless department

         13  might try to find a place for this child to stay

         14  while they deal with the other issues.  And the

         15  mental health of that child may not be looked at,

         16  because the child is moving from place to place.  So

         17  I am trying to figure out how would the department

         18  know if there is some coordinated effort being made

         19  to at least address that issue?

         20                 MS. HARRISON: Specifically, you are

         21  saying for domestic violence.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, not

         23  only for domestic violence.

         24                 MS. HARRISON: Or any issues?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, that
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          2  might be one of the causes that caused the child to

          3  be in that situation.  And whether someone is going

          4  to be looking into the situation of that child,

          5  whether they get in some sort of help in terms of

          6  treatment from the trauma that the child has gone

          7  through because of the domestic violence.  I would

          8  just like to know that there is some coordinated

          9  effort that is being made to at least address that

         10  issue.

         11                 MS. HARRISON: That is what CCSI is

         12  all about.  It is about coordinating the efforts

         13  about individual kids and families, and around

         14  larger issues.  We have a lot of work to do.  But

         15  there is an effort to move in that direction.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         17  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: My last point in

         19  regard of the testimony of the administration, I

         20  want to ask you if you plan to do something to

         21  expedite the way that the mental health side of the

         22  Health Department do contracts?  I am very

         23  displeased with the way that the mental health side

         24  is dealing with this issue.  And to speak about the

         25  disparity that I knew would happen when these two
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          2  departments merged.  And I speak to that again, and

          3  again.  And if this is not corrected, what this

          4  point out, is that then we need to go back to the

          5  decision that was made under the charter about

          6  merging the two departments.  And the way that this

          7  mandated occurred is very clear.  It can not be a

          8  disadvantage on the merger against the mental health

          9  side.  And I have been seeing that consistently.

         10  And seeing it in the RFP process, and seeing it when

         11  we discussing services for substance abuse, and

         12  seeing it in a consistent manner.  Then this is not

         13  me being suspicious.  This is me looking at the

         14  reality of how the contracts, when on about

         15  substance abuse or mental health take longer, more

         16  difficult, compared to the contracts on the high

         17  side of health.  And this needs to stop.  And I want

         18  to know what are you planning to do? Because what is

         19  going on so far, with all of this contract, is

         20  unacceptable.

         21                 MS. HARRISON: I am not sure I can

         22  speak about the larger issue.  I do not know if you

         23  want to, okay, maybe I will let Meagen Clifton

         24  (phonetic) say something about that, from the larger

         25  issue.  Because I cannot personally speak for the
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          2  whole --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Well, then we have

          4  a problem. And I mean, I am very, very concerned

          5  about this.  Because the mental health community and

          6  the community that take care of substance abuse, was

          7  categorically clear in the problem of the merger at

          8  the time.  And this was precisely one of the fears

          9  that we have.  And the fear is coming through,

         10  unless we correct it. Then I hope that you can

         11  address this with a letter to me, and see how we can

         12  begin working on this to fix it.

         13                 MS. HARRISON: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you very

         15  much and tell Dr. Sederer that it is a great

         16  improvement to have you here. And it is a pleasure.

         17  I am so sorry that I am not going to be able to

         18  chair more with you, as the Chair of this Committee,

         19  because you are coming when I am leaving.  But I am

         20  a friend, and I hope that we can become friends.

         21                 MS. HARRISON: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Bye bye.

         23                 MS. HARRISON: Bye.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Are you

         25  saying that because you are leaving your friend?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Well, you know

          3  what I am mean. That I am not going to be in the

          4  Council Chamber as a Council member.  I am not

          5  saying that I am not going to be in the Council

          6  Chambers as something else.  I am just saying, not

          7  as a Council member anymore.  I may become a

          8  Sergeant of Arm.  Can you imagine that?  I will have

          9  a ball.  It will be fantastic.  Do you want me as a

         10  colleague on that?

         11                 At this moment, I would like to ask

         12  Council Member Brewer to introduce herself.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I vote aye.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But, can you

         15  introduce yourself first?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I am Gale

         17  Brewer, City council member for the West Side, and I

         18  have been Principal for A Day all morning, and

         19  interestingly enough, one of the challenges this

         20  morning for the Principal, were several young people

         21  in the middle school with challenging situations.

         22  And we had there the social worker, the foster

         23  parent, the grand parent and all of the issues that

         24  are coming to the floor at today's hearing, were

         25  evident in the middle school.  Because there had not

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  been any support in the earlier grades.  So we sat

          3  there going through practical, as opposed to

          4  theoretical, in terms of trying to think how these

          5  young people can continue in the school, and not act

          6  out, and get support services, and actually the IEP

          7  was going to take 60 days in order to be evaluated,

          8  and we cut that in half, or less, because I was

          9  there.  So these are practical issues that are real

         10  and that is why it is good to have this hearing.

         11  Thank you Madame Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And register your

         13  vote now.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I vote aye on

         15  the amendments. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.  What

         17  Council Member Brewer is saying is very interesting

         18  because they can evaluate a child until they die.

         19  But if there are no services for them, then what do

         20  you do?  Have been evaluated and knowing that you

         21  should put in the record, potential domestic

         22  violence receiver are given. And you can have that

         23  for the future, and you can become a full fortune

         24  teller for that child.

         25                 At this moment we are going to call
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          2  the first person who is going to witness, in regard

          3  of the program implementation.

          4                 MS. DePEDRO: At this moment we will

          5  call Dr. Ann Murphy and Dr. Parish from Early

          6  Childhood Center Albert Einstein College of

          7  Medicine.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I want to

          9  thank Susan Shanitz (phonetic) because it was the

         10  person who insisted in talking to me about this

         11  issue one day that she was confused about the

         12  subject of the hearing.  On that particular day, she

         13  came to the Mental Health Committee to talk about

         14  this issue, when this issue was not in question at

         15  the time.  And she insisted and talk to me no matter

         16  what, and I allowed her.  Then I want to thank her

         17  for being the Godmother of this issue from the side

         18  of the provider.  Then forever I will be extremely

         19  respectful of her.  Please bring that message back

         20  to her.  Thank you.

         21                 Then tell me about the program that

         22  you have been able to develop and what happened.  I

         23  am very sad that she is not here.  But I hope that

         24  she is doing something good.

         25                 MS. MURPHY: She is doing something
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          2  good, you can be assured.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

          4                 MS. MURPHY: Also, as part of our

          5  team, we have Denise Giamanco.  She is the

          6  Coordinator of Bilingual Services and she

          7  spearheaded the Pre- School Consultation Project,

          8  which she will speak about.  I will just begin by

          9  giving an overview of the programs.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Pull this towards

         11  you as closely as possible.  Do not be afraid of it.

         12    That way you can read and not be -- it will give

         13  you pain in the neck.

         14                 MS. MURPHY: Do not need that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Twice it will give

         16  you pain in the neck.

         17                 MS. MURPHY: Council Member Lopez, and

         18  the members of the committee, we are very pleased to

         19  be here today to update you on the progress of the

         20  programs at the Early Childhood Center at the Albert

         21  Einstein College of Medicine in the Bronx.  With

         22  your funding, we were able to expand to add five new

         23  programs to the Mental Health Services already

         24  offered to children under five at our center.  By

         25  March 2005, all five new programs were fully
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          2  operational, and since then, over 500 children under

          3  five years old, who had not previously come to

          4  clinical attention, have received treatment.

          5  Referrals have come from domestic violence shelters,

          6  substance abuse programs, shelters, preschool, Bronx

          7  Family Court, foster care agencies and pediatric

          8  practices.  City funding allowed us to add a

          9  psychiatrist to our team of early childhood mental

         10  health specialist, enabling us to have a

         11  psychiatrist on staff to treat maternal mental

         12  health problems, which were disrupting the lives of

         13  the young children who come to clinical attention.

         14  So far over 25 mothers have received treatment as

         15  part of their parent/child therapy, where issues

         16  range from exposure to domestic violence, community

         17  violence, parental incarceration, substance abuse

         18  and homelessness.

         19                 In addition, funding allowed us to

         20  create a preventative infant mental health program,

         21  located in a primary pediatric practice at the

         22  Comprehensive Family Care Center, affiliated with

         23  Montefiore Medical Center, to screen children for

         24  social emotional difficulties.  An infant mental

         25  health specialist from our staff works at the
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          2  pediatric practice, and during well child visits,

          3  screens babies, toddlers and young children for

          4  emotional difficulties.  And if problems are

          5  identified, our specialists offer services ranging

          6  from parent/child therapy, to referrals to early

          7  intervention, or to the committee on pre- school

          8  special education.  In some cases, our infant mental

          9  health specialist makes home visits to particularly

         10  high risk families of young children.

         11                 Since our pediatric mental health

         12  program began, over 525 children under five, have

         13  been screened, with 70 receiving direct services

         14  from the infant mental health specialist.  Fifty two

         15  children were served through mental health

         16  consultation with their pediatrician or parent, and

         17  46 children were referred to other needed services.

         18  In addition, our infant mental health specialist in

         19  the pediatric practice has provided on going

         20  education and formal training in topics essential to

         21  understanding infant mental health, to 12 attending

         22  pediatricians, 40 pediatric residents and ten fourth

         23  year medical students.  This program has identified

         24  very young children at risk for later emotional

         25  problems, earlier than had previously been possible,
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          2  before this newly funded program.  The combination

          3  of ongoing screening and provider education has

          4  greatly enhanced our ability to identify early, the

          5  youngest children at risk, for problems in social,

          6  emotional and behavioral development.

          7                 I will now introduce Denise Giamanco,

          8  our Coordinator of Bilingual Services, who has

          9  spearheaded and coordinated our third project, The

         10  Preschool Consultation Project, designed to infuse a

         11  mental health perspective into preschool programs,

         12  while simultaneously reducing preschool expulsion

         13  rates in our City's preschools.

         14                 Denise Giamanco.

         15                 MS. GIAMANCO: Good morning.  Thank

         16  you for having me here today.

         17                 I would like to share with you my

         18  experience with the Preschool Consultation Project.

         19  We are currently in three specific programs in the

         20  Bronx.  We provide services to approximately 400

         21  children attending the preschool, with educational

         22  staff eagerly engaging clinicians for diagnostic

         23  clarification and treatment of children between the

         24  ages of two to five years, providing a wide array of

         25  behavioral and emotional symptoms, ranging from
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          2  internalizing behaviors of withdrawal or depression,

          3  to externalizing behaviors, such as aggression and

          4  disruptions in the classroom.

          5                 During the last Fiscal Year, we were

          6  able to provide individual therapy services for 65

          7  children.  In addition, we sought 87 children in

          8  group intervention.  We provided, in addition to

          9  those services, whole class sessions to increase the

         10  social emotional skills of children in the entire

         11  program.

         12                 In addition to the direct work that

         13  we provide with the children identified, we work

         14  with the educational staff to expand their knowledge

         15  of best practices, using creative curriculum and

         16  therapeutic curriculum such as Leslie Capp Lowes

         17  (phonetic), Unsmiling Faces, a book which is used to

         18  treat children presented with emotional and

         19  behavioral problems.  They were also provided

         20  empirically based interventions for children with

         21  attention deficit and hyper- active disorder.  One

         22  of the programs that we used, is called The

         23  Incredible Years, which enhanced the current

         24  population and enabled the teachers to provide for

         25  those children who were to follow.
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          2                 In addition to the services provided

          3  to the children and the teachers, we went full

          4  circle and included families of the preschool

          5  children who attended the program.  This was our

          6  effort to bridge the gap between the home life of

          7  the preschool child with the educational environment

          8  in the programs that we were working. Families were

          9  able to come on their own and request certain

         10  meetings with the clinicians in each of the centers,

         11  to discuss their concerns about their child's

         12  behavior and future outcomes, based on their

         13  concerns about respect within the family, including

         14  domestic violence, which would impact the life of

         15  that young child.             To this date, we are

         16  back in those same programs. We are providing

         17  services.  We have an increase in parents coming to

         18  our attention, based on our experience there in the

         19  last Fiscal Year.  We are providing already training

         20  sessions for the staff in the specific preschools,

         21  and will continue working with those children that

         22  are raised with red flags as alerts, for the mental

         23  health clinicians to be able to provide services.

         24                 Right now I will turn over the

         25  presentation to Doctor Shaylee (phonetic) Perez who
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          2  was involved in the Foster Care Project.

          3                 MS. PEREZ: Good morning.  The

          4  Therapeutic Visiting for Young Children in Foster

          5  Care was developed to serve the most vulnerable

          6  infants, toddlers and preschool- aged children,

          7  those who have been removed from their parents due

          8  to neglect, physical or sexual abuse, parental

          9  substance abuse or mental illness.  This program

         10  provides a local foster care agency.  We have been

         11  working with Leake and Watts, with access to infant

         12  and early childhood mental health professionals with

         13  resources within the context of the regularly

         14  scheduled visit between the young children and their

         15  biological parents, in order to assist and promote

         16  the process of permanency planning.

         17                 In this project, clinicians meet with

         18  parents before the visit, to plan activities that

         19  will engage children in play and interaction with

         20  their parents, and to support parents in containing

         21  their anger and frustration in order to help focus

         22  on what the children need from them in the visit.

         23  The therapists monitor the parents' interactive

         24  behaviors, coach the parents in using non punitive

         25  ways of managing difficult behaviors, and assess
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          2  progress from week to week, together with the

          3  parent, in order to stay both focused and realistic

          4  about timely permanency planning, which is the most

          5  important way that we can help support young

          6  children in mental health in foster care.

          7                 In this last Fiscal Year, five

          8  families were served in the therapeutic visiting

          9  program at Leake and Watts, another five families

         10  were provided with therapeutic visiting at the Early

         11  Childhood Center.  This year, Leake and Watts has

         12  already identified over ten families that they are

         13  planning to refer for this service and we are also

         14  currently training new mental health professionals

         15  in this area.

         16                 I would also like to tell you a

         17  little bit about Doctor Chenise's (phonetic) Court

         18  Consultation Project.  Funding has permitted some

         19  clinicians from the Early Childhood Center to go to

         20  the Bronx Family Court twice a month to provide

         21  consultation to legal aid attorneys and to judges,

         22  on cases that involve infants, toddlers and

         23  preschool- aged children.  The goal is to assist

         24  court personnel in making decisions for young

         25  children, that support and do not derail their
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          2  social emotional development.  Each month, Early

          3  Childhood Center staff, work on approximately four

          4  to six cases with court personnel, either indirectly

          5  through a consultation, or most directly through

          6  offering therapeutic services that we provide at the

          7  early childhood center.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: This is excellent.

          9    If I be your teacher, I give you A plus.  I mean,

         10  I did not expect less from Susan, but it is just

         11  incredible what you have done.  I am extremely

         12  pleased with this.  And I do not regret one minute

         13  letting her speak in that hidden that day.  God, she

         14  put in place everything that I wanted, a single --

         15  this is great.

         16                 MS. MURPHY: The plan, I think was

         17  really a comprehensive array of services.  And what

         18  has been amazing is that it starts at the

         19  pediatrician's office.  That a baby, you know, a

         20  baby normally does not come to attention, but the

         21  clinician that we have there met with a mother of a

         22  two week old baby, and the mother had, you know, a

         23  history of -- she was a mother who had been in

         24  foster care, bounced around, you know, none of the

         25  advantages of the infant mental health brain
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          2  research that we know now.  Some of the mothers are

          3  really 20 years too late to have benefited from some

          4  of what we know.  Our clinician identified that this

          5  baby was at risk.  And we have been seeing that baby

          6  in one of the mother/child programs since he was

          7  four months old.  So that child really does not

          8  present with problems, but he is at risk for

          9  problems, because mom brings so much to the

         10  relationship.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I mean, this is

         12  incredible.  I am very pleased that my thoughts were

         13  put in action in this way.  This is exactly what I

         14  thought this program needed to be.  Then she does

         15  listen very well.

         16                 MS. MURPHY: She has good listening

         17  skills.

         18                 MS. PEREZ: And I think that also you

         19  were able to help give us a forum where we could go

         20  and do some of the things that, as clinicians, we

         21  see every day.  We see these gaps with these

         22  children at this age.  And we see the lack of

         23  services for them.  And so now, we kind of are more

         24  able to better serve them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: This particular
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          2  had to become the model that we have to implement.

          3  Now I want to understand, I know that I begin the

          4  program with children under five.  But I also know

          5  very clear that the problem is not children under

          6  five only.  It is children from age zero to I would

          7  say perhaps fifteen years old, is where I see this

          8  problem.  And I see it in the critical time between

          9  those ages in which you can stop this child from

         10  becoming an abuser or a victim of abuse in that

         11  period of time I think that we can succeed, if we

         12  intervene.

         13                 The first question I have that is

         14  very important for me, the model that you are using

         15  here is not about medicating these children.

         16  Correct?

         17                 MS. MURPHY: That is not the primary

         18  focus.  We are going in beginning with the

         19  intervention.  Medication, if it is an addendum to

         20  the treatment provided, will be a later

         21  consideration.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, because I

         23  have another concern in regard of this issue of

         24  medicating children.  Medicating children is

         25  something that is more serious than the medical
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          2  profession is taking.  I am very blow away by

          3  something that I discover by having hearings in this

          4  chamber, in which I learn that teachers are

          5  referring children for psychiatric treatment

          6  basically talking about medication, and nothing

          7  else.  And my concern with that issue had to do with

          8  the majority of the children that are referred when

          9  we see acting out, it is not that they have any

         10  psychiatric problem.  It is that they are having

         11  problems in their home.  And to treat them, what we

         12  need is programs like this.  It is not giving them

         13  psychiatric medication that had never been tested on

         14  children and have serious consequences on the life

         15  of those children.  Then I want to make sure that

         16  you are on top of this, and can you speak to me a

         17  little bit about it?

         18                 MS. MURPHY: Yes.  I am in the

         19  Preschool Program and I work with teachers very

         20  frequently around issues of children acting out, and

         21  one of the quick remedies is to fix it.  And in the

         22  media, I believe that many of the teachers have come

         23  across the idea that medicating will decrease the

         24  disruptive behavior, and that will address the

         25  problem.  We are going in really looking at the
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          2  behavior as a symptom of a larger problem, which is

          3  what you are referring to.  And we are helping

          4  teachers become more scientific in their approach to

          5  children.  Not to look at the behavior in a

          6  judgmental fashion, but to look at it as a symptom

          7  of a larger issue.  Whether that larger issue be an

          8  organic difficulty that the child is exhibiting, or

          9  whether it is symptomatic of a much more global risk

         10  factor within the family.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I've been looking

         12  on legislation to prohibit teachers getting involved

         13  in the question of providing psychiatric treatment

         14  to children, because I think that children need to

         15  be evaluated before anybody put them in that

         16  situation. And it is my belief that the only ones

         17  that can evaluate a child, is the professionals on

         18  the field in regard of that.  And look at the

         19  comprehensive evaluation that that child need to go

         20  through to determine what is wrong.  Then I have

         21  learned that it is customary for the school system

         22  to refer a child to a psychiatrist for medication,

         23  like this is the bullet that will cure whatever is

         24  happening in there.  And I been looking on

         25  introducing legislation like that, and I am going to
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          2  do it.  I am going to proceed with this.  I am not

          3  going to let this issue go.  What is your opinion in

          4  regards to that?

          5                 MS. MURPHY: In regard to introducing

          6  legislation?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, about making

          8  sure that we do not allow this practice of the

          9  school system to become psychiatrists, psychologists

         10  and social workers with clinical experience.  They

         11  are teachers.  They are not any of the other

         12  professions that I mentioned.  I am, I feel very

         13  strongly about that and I think that we need to take

         14  care of this problem as soon as possible.

         15                 MS. MURPHY: You know, I think we

         16  could provide you probably with data on the numbers

         17  of children that, with -- that the funding, you know

         18  that we have served or treated.  And my guess is the

         19  percentage or number of children who have been

         20  referred through us for any medication, my sense is

         21  you could count them on one hand.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Now what does that

         23  represent again?

         24                 MS. MURPHY: The number of children

         25  that we have referred for medication.  My estimate
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          2  would be you could count them on one hand.  So if we

          3  have treated 500 children, I would guess that it is

          4  less than five that we have referred for medication.

          5  You know, as you were speaking, I was thinking, kids

          6  need, and Myla referred to it in her testimony, that

          7  this parent/child relationship work.  They need

          8  relationships, far more often than they need

          9  medication.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That is very

         11  refreshing for me.

         12                 MS. MURPHY: I would also like to add

         13  that for teachers, there are very few resources at

         14  this point.  And that there needs to be a great

         15  input by a variety of professionals to educate them

         16  on the alternatives.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: One of the things

         18  that I find out, during the time that I was looking

         19  in to this question of how to treat the children

         20  that exhibit this, of being witness to domestic

         21  violence in the communities, or being victims of

         22  violence themselves.  One of the things that I find

         23  out was that many of the children that were put on

         24  medication, the parents never were told what are the

         25  consequences of this medication, and what are the
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          2  side effects of this medication and what are the

          3  consequences and long term about the record that

          4  that child will carry.  And I even find out that a

          5  child that is put on medication would not qualify to

          6  be part of the Armed Forces.  And the parents were

          7  never told this information in advance.  Then that

          8  is part of the reason I am so

          9  concerned about this.  I am not a person who is pro

         10  war, but I feel that people should be able to

         11  fulfill their dreams in life when they grow up, and

         12  if a person have a problem when they were a

         13  children, and the records show that they were on

         14  psychiatric medication and then they are not going

         15  to be allowed, in some cases even to be part of the

         16  police forces, because that record will follow that

         17  child.  That needs to be told to the parents before

         18  that child is put on medication.  Because the

         19  consequences are very serious.  Then that is the

         20  reason why I am so concerned about this.

         21                 Council member, Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.  I

         23  thought it was very impressive, the story of the

         24  small baby and your ability to be part of that

         25  transition into childhood.  That is impressive.  Do

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  you think that is only going on with your pilot

          3  project?  Is there any other place where that kind

          4  of preemptive advocacy --

          5                 MS. MURPHY: Young babies, the place

          6  that, the system that they interact with is really

          7  the pediatrician's office at a well baby visit.  So

          8  by training the pediatricians and their staffs to

          9  really be able to identify, is there domestic

         10  violence in this family?  Has this mother been in

         11  multiple foster homes, herself? Does she have a

         12  history of substance abuse, maternal depression? Has

         13  she been in multiple foster homes?  All of those

         14  kinds of things, you know if they are doing more

         15  than just giving the vaccinations, checking that the

         16  babies are the correct weight.  We have a screening

         17  instrument that the specialists over in the

         18  pediatric practice uses.  It is called Ages and

         19  Stages for, and it is a screening for emotional

         20  development.  They know that the pediatrician is

         21  going to check, is she sitting up?  Is she holding

         22  her head up?  Those kinds of things, but this really

         23  gets at the emotional milestones that a healthy baby

         24  should be making.  So we can screen through looking

         25  at the baby, as well as really seeing the red flags
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          2  that the mother brings to the relationship, because

          3  often that is what will derail the child.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So is this

          5  something that the American Pediatric Association

          6  has adopted, or is this something that you are

          7  working to move across the profession?

          8                 MS. MURPHY: Our psychologist, that

          9  works in that practice, was just in Washington and

         10  she did a presentation on the work that she is doing

         11  and that was the American Pediatric Association

         12  Conference.  She presented that in Washington just a

         13  couple of weeks ago.  So she was a presence at that.

         14    You know, whether that is one of their top

         15  agendas, you know, I do not know.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  And the

         17  question I have, obviously I have spent a lot of

         18  time, as we all do, in the schools, and I think you

         19  heard me mention earlier that I was Principal for a

         20  Day today, as I have been for many years, and of

         21  course today just happened to be a day with two

         22  young people who were there with an array of support

         23  factors.  Of course, it is a situation when the

         24  Principal and the teachers are under tremendous

         25  stress to perform.  And when a couple of young
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          2  people act out and then there is a challenge in

          3  terms of the other students and performance and

          4  tests, it is a challenge.  So, what do you think?

          5  Obviously this is a longer question, but what do you

          6  think are the deficiencies, and there are many of

          7  them, in the schools, in terms of young people who

          8  have such challenges?  You have a school social

          9  worker who is over stressed.  You have a counselor

         10  who is only part time, usually in small schools.

         11  And you have teachers who are just trying to teach,

         12  as the Chairperson said, and there is a guardian,

         13  foster parent, biological grandparent, often, and

         14  then a social worker from an agency, but I think it

         15  is always clear that nobody quite knows what to do.

         16  And so, I was just wondering, in your experience,

         17  what would be some of the other services that could

         18  move quickly for intervention?

         19                 MS. MURPHY: I think there is a great

         20  need for education in this process.  I think that,

         21  as I mentioned earlier, teachers really feel at a

         22  loss.  And one of the topics that came up very

         23  frequently in my experience in the preschool

         24  program, is the disruption in the teacher/pupil

         25  relationship.  If you have a teacher that is working
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          2  with a class and there is one child disrupting the

          3  class, it is very, very difficult for one

          4  professional who does not have the training, to work

          5  with complicated challenging behaviors, to be able

          6  to know what to do.

          7                 The other piece, which I was very

          8  pleased to hear you say was, that the system is slow

          9  moving.  And especially with young children we see

         10  very frequently, that they are referred for services

         11  and something gets set aside.  There may be a loss

         12  in the referral, there may not be a program they

         13  get, Margarita Lopez had mentioned earlier.  We

         14  identify children very quickly.  But then finding an

         15  adequate program, a seat for them, is another issue.

         16

         17                 So there needs to be more education,

         18  more funding for specialized services.  I think

         19  there needs to be a bridge between the therapeutic

         20  piece and the educational piece, where there does

         21  not have to be a referral out.  Because for many of

         22  the families that we work with that have numerous

         23  stressors in their life, taking a child from school

         24  and going to a clinic that is more than a 15 minute

         25  traveling span, is an impossible task on a regular
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          2  basis.  And for many of our very young children,

          3  they need therapy at least once a week, if not twice

          4  a week, for those that have been witness to some of

          5  the severe cases of domestic violence.  And the

          6  complications in their lives are just so tremendous,

          7  that these families really need more input and more

          8  support systems, as well as the schools.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: My last point is I

         11  would like to ask you to facilitate a visit of all

         12  of the new groups that are going to get funding and

         13  are going to start implementing programs. And I

         14  would like to ask you very nicely, that you allow

         15  that visit to happen, because it will be helpful to

         16  all of the other groups that are going to come on

         17  board, to implement the program themselves.  It will

         18  be the first time that they get this particular

         19  grant, and I want to duplicate that, not just in the

         20  Bronx, but in Manhattan and in Queens and in Staten

         21  Island and Brooklyn.

         22                 Then, thank you very much and God

         23  bless you.

         24                 MS. MURPHY: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 MS. DePEDRO: Has anyone arrived that

          3  has not signed up that wants to testify?  At this

          4  moment we will call our next panel.  It will be from

          5  the new providers and we will have Robert Tobing

          6  from the University Settlement and Lilliam Barrios-

          7  Paoli from Safe Space.  Lilliam, can you please

          8  begin?

          9                 MS. BARRIOS-PAOLI: Hi.  My name is

         10  Lilliam Barrios- Paoli and I am the Executive

         11  Director of Safe Space.  Safe Space is an eighty

         12  five year old agency that was started as the Queens

         13  Borough Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to

         14  Children.  We feel that the big advantage that we

         15  bring to the table, is that we are right at the

         16  nexus between child welfare, foster care and

         17  domestic violence.  We have been one of the pioneer

         18  agencies in child welfare that has looked at the

         19  overlap of domestic violence and child abuse.  We

         20  have partnered with Connect, a group that has an

         21  extensive experience in domestic violence, and we

         22  have been screening all of our families that come to

         23  our preventive services for domestic violence.  We

         24  also run groups for women and we pilot PLAY, which

         25  stands for Positive Live Aspiration Youth, that
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          2  serves mothers and their children in families that

          3  have experienced domestic violence.

          4                 We have three mental health clinics

          5  located in Far Rockaway, Jamaica and Manhattan.  And

          6  we serve both adults and children.  In our Manhattan

          7  clinic, 42 percent of our clients are children.  In

          8  our Jamaica clinic, 58 percent of the clients are

          9  children and in Far Rockaway, 79 percent of the

         10  clients are children.  Thirty percent of the

         11  children in our preventive program sites are between

         12  zero and five years old.  And in Jamaica and Far

         13  Rockaway, our clinics often cross refer between our

         14  mental health clinics and our preventive programs.

         15                 The funding will provide us with a

         16  vital opportunity to enhance services at our three

         17  mental health clinics for this zero to five

         18  population.  We are interested in focusing on

         19  children who have experienced trauma and violence.

         20                 We believe we can identify many

         21  families who will benefit from these services

         22  through their preventive programs that we conduct,

         23  and by doing outreach to agencies responsible for

         24  the care of young children that are placed in foster

         25  care.
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          2                 This funding will give us the ability

          3  to bolster our capacity through training and

          4  technical assistance from the Child Witness To

          5  Violence Project based in Boston, Massachusetts, one

          6  of the pioneering agencies in this field.

          7                 We propose this scope of services to

          8  provide individual therapeutic counseling sessions

          9  for children five years and younger.  Clearly,

         10  parents will be in the room most of the time with

         11  them, or they will be receiving services in a

         12  concurrent session.  Workshops will be held

         13  concurrently with women's groups to provide safe,

         14  welcoming opportunities for children to begin to

         15  explore their areas.

         16                 Group sessions that engage mothers

         17  and their children to participate together in

         18  activities such as art therapy projects.

         19                 We will have regular family

         20  counseling sessions that focus on parental and

         21  collateral education of important mental health

         22  issues, and appropriate family based support for the

         23  child.              We will be monitoring critical

         24  early childhood developmental milestones, such as

         25  language behavioral responsibility, socialization,
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          2  cognitive skills, mental health milestones.

          3                 We will be conducting standardized

          4  measures of symptoms at entry, and periodically

          5  thereafter, to access improvement.

          6                 And we will administer a customer

          7  satisfaction questionnaire, clearly to see if the

          8  feedback that we are getting from the clients is

          9  consistent to what we believe we are achieving.

         10                 We anticipate that we will be serving

         11  at least 60 families in a six month period.

         12                 We will be conducting a minimum of 60

         13  assessments on children five years and younger.

         14                 We will devise a minimum of 55

         15  treatment plans for children and their families.

         16                 And we will engage 85 percent of the

         17  mothers with infants in the programming group

         18  session, focusing on attachment and relational

         19  activities.

         20                 We will be ensuring that 75 percent

         21  of the children under five, receive treatment

         22  demonstrated -- when they receive treatment, will

         23  demonstrate some reduction of the symptoms related

         24  to trauma or experience of violence.  And progress

         25  will be measured by parental self reports,
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          2  therapeutic observations and outcomes of the

          3  standardized measure of symptoms.

          4                 We will engage 50 mothers in group

          5  workshops and parental education.

          6                 And we will connect 100 percent of

          7  those families that are actively engaged in

          8  treatment to other neighborhood resources.

          9                 Just an addendum in terms of what you

         10  were discussing before, in terms of children in

         11  schools.  We run one model program in Queens, called

         12  Kid Wise, that is a mental health program in a

         13  school that works during all the school hours.  And

         14  basically what it focuses on is, teaching teachers,

         15  custodians, principals, everyone in the school how

         16  to deal better with children, how to do classroom

         17  management, and how to identify the difference

         18  between a child that has real mental health issues

         19  so that we can refer them to treatment, which we

         20  also provide, versus the child that just needs other

         21  interventions.  And also we work very closely with

         22  parents.  So that you know, we feel that based on

         23  all of those strengths, we will be able to provide

         24  additional services to the kids we identify, with

         25  this new initiative.
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          2                 MR. TOBING: Good morning.  And I

          3  welcome the opportunity to address this

          4  distinguished panel.  My name is Robert Tobing and I

          5  am the Assistant Executive Director at University

          6  Settlement, which is the nation's oldest social

          7  settlement.  From our headquarters on the Lower East

          8  Side, and from satellite offices in Manhattan, we

          9  serve a total of 10,000 people a year in a cluster

         10  of programs that span a life cycle, including early

         11  head start, early intervention, family literacy,

         12  after school activities, college advisement,

         13  eviction prevention, mental health and older adult

         14  services.

         15                 As a community- based institution, it

         16  is not unusual for us to be serving three

         17  generations of the same family.  Our older adults'

         18  program currently counts as members, six pairs of an

         19  older parent and their over 60 year old child.

         20  Clearly we have earned our participant's trust, and

         21  they value the services that we provide.

         22                 Our community has changed

         23  significantly since we opened our doors in 1886.  It

         24  is no secret that we have survived and thrived as a

         25  result of our ability to relate to our ever
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          2  revolving neighborhood and its residents.  From the

          3  vantage point of our community location, we have the

          4  opportunity to witness first hand, the needs of our

          5  population.

          6                 As new ethnic and language groups

          7  have moved into the area, the Settlement has adopted

          8  its programs in response to the service needs of our

          9  new neighbors.  Currently, our consumers consist of

         10  various Hispanic groups from the Caribbean and South

         11  America, as well as a growing proportion of Chinese,

         12  speaking a variety of dialects.

         13                 The programs at the Settlement are

         14  all multilingual, and the diversity of our staff

         15  reflects the diversity of our participants.  For

         16  over 55 years, our mental health programs have been

         17  promoting behavioral health services, among many for

         18  whom the issue of mental health is highly

         19  stigmatized and often taboo.  We have become expert

         20  in engaging first time mental health consumers, well

         21  aware that active outreach into the neighborhood, is

         22  key to assuring success in treatment.

         23            The Settlement is pleased to have been

         24  selected to participate in the Children Under Five

         25  Mental Health Initiative. Our experience in the
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          2  delivery of mental health services to children and

          3  their families through our Victory Guild

          4  Consultation Center clinic, our Blended Case

          5  Management program and our Home- Based Crisis

          6  Intervention service, have led us to conclude that

          7  early childhood development and family patterns of

          8  behavior, can be identified and assessed.  More

          9  importantly, timely intervention and treatment can

         10  be provided to avert the concretization of

         11  maladaptive behaviors.  If not addressed, these

         12  behaviors frequently lead to personal frustration

         13  and unhappiness among the child in the family, and

         14  carry a higher personal and social cost, when

         15  tackled in the older child or adolescent.

         16                 The Settlement proposes to address

         17  the mental health needs of the under five year old

         18  child in a variety of ways.  Our main program site

         19  on Eldridge Street, is home to several child care

         20  programs.  An early childhood specialist, a mental

         21  health clinician fluent in either Chinese or

         22  Spanish, and experienced with working with younger

         23  children and families, will conduct psycho

         24  educational trainings to both the staff and the

         25  parents on the identification of emotional and
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          2  adjustment issues in their children.  The early

          3  childhood specialist will also observe the children

          4  in the course of their classroom activities, and

          5  offer recommendations to both the parents and the

          6  teachers on how best to work with a particular

          7  child.

          8                 Since the early childhood specialist

          9  will be familiar to the child and the parent, it is

         10  determined that the child in the family will benefit

         11  from the receipt of additional services, the

         12  clinician would accompany the parent and child to

         13  our mental health clinic with the services of an

         14  ongoing therapist, a testing psychologist and a

         15  psychiatrist would be available as needed.

         16                 Although in many of our families, an

         17  adult is employed, if health insurance is available

         18  there is limited or no coverage for mental health.

         19  So that finances would not be a barrier, we would

         20  arrange for the child and their families to receive

         21  services of no cost, until such time as eligibility

         22  for an entitlement can be established.  Similarly,

         23  the program would offer to pay for public

         24  transportation costs in order to ensure

         25  participation.
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          2                 The Settlement has a long standing

          3  collaboration with the Esquela Hispana Montessori

          4  School on Avenue D.  This is a head start program

          5  where the population is predominantly Hispanic. We

          6  have already reached an agreement to regularly

          7  outstation a Spanish speaking early childhood

          8  specialist, to provide orientation to the staff and

          9  parents and assess the individual needs to

         10  observation and consultation.  Ongoing services

         11  would be referred to our mental health clinic and

         12  the financial incentives described above would also

         13  be extended.

         14                 Given our numerous partnerships with

         15  other service providers in the community, we will

         16  offer to provide these organizations with parent and

         17  staff orientations.  More in depth services would be

         18  available through our clinic.

         19                 The Settlement takes great pride in

         20  its ability to offer a continuum of care across the

         21  life cycle.  Mental health services to children

         22  under five, satisfies an important need that has so

         23  recently been recognized.  We are eager to embark on

         24  this collaboration with the Department of Health and

         25  Mental Hygiene, and to the generous support of the
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          2  City council, and develop innovative services to

          3  this population.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Again, this is

          5  both very impressive.  And I did not expect less

          6  from either one of you. From the purpose of the full

          7  disclosure, not only the Settlement had been for

          8  many, many years in operation and the oldest, but I

          9  used to work there.  In 1980, I used to work there

         10  as, working with seniors and the housing problem in

         11  that area.  Then, a graduate of that particular

         12  institution.

         13                 I am curious to know from Safe Space,

         14  what is the population that you see in terms of

         15  ethnicity, the majority of --

         16                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: Yes, in our

         17  Queens area, we used to traditionally serve mostly

         18  African Americans.  That has changed very

         19  dramatically in the last five years or so.  We now

         20  serve about 30 percent Latinos, mostly coming from

         21  South America and Mexico. And this is in the bulk of

         22  our programs in Queens.  In Far Rockaway, the number

         23  of Mexicans has dramatically shifted that equation,

         24  as well.  In Manhattan, because of our location, we

         25  have primarily served two populations, the LGBDQ
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          2  community and also homeless and substance abusers.

          3  And part of it is our mental health clinic is

          4  located on 42nd and 8th Avenue -- 43rd and 8th

          5  Avenue, I am sorry.  And the services that we

          6  provide in Manhattan area, we have a residence for

          7  HIV positive young people that are homeless or run

          8  away.  We have a LGBDQ residence and we also have

          9  the mental health clinic and we have a drop in

         10  center for homeless youths.  So given that, it is a

         11   -- in those places, we serve predominantly Latino

         12  and African American young people.  And among the

         13  homeless, again, it is a minority oriented service.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Why the African

         15  American community has diminished as a clientele?

         16  Is it because the reduction of the population moving

         17  to another place, or because they are not coming for

         18  services?

         19                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: I think what has

         20  happened is that there has been an influx of other

         21  populations into that community.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I see.

         23                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: And they are

         24  coming for services, especially around Jamaica,

         25  South Ozone Park and the Rockaways.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It is not that

          3  they are not looking for services?

          4                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It is not.  In

          6  other words, it is not that the African American

          7  population reduced, it is that the other one

          8  increased the population itself.

          9                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: That is correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And then it is

         11  reflected in turn of how many they are now.  That is

         12  what it is.

         13                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: Right.  Yes.  We

         14  are also seeing a big influx of people from India

         15  and Pakistan and Bangladesh and you know, sort of

         16  Eastern Asian populations.  Which is also a changing

         17  nature of the communities in Queens.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The committee has

         19  been pre occupied to make sure that the services

         20  reach out to every group. And that was the reason

         21  Safe Space was selected as one of the groups.  To

         22  make sure that happen.  And I want to share that

         23  with you that I feel very confident that your

         24  organization will provide the services across the

         25  board.
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          2                 And the same thing goes for

          3  University Settlement. One of the concerns that the

          4  committee have is the Asian American community, that

          5  tend to be not served for reasons that had to do

          6  with the culture of maintaining themself (sic.),

          7  perhaps scared to go on sick services.  And I want

          8  to break that barrier and I want to make sure that

          9  we reach out to them.  Can you speak a little bit on

         10  that?

         11                 MR. TOBING: Well, it is curious in

         12  that depending on the programs and where they are

         13  located, that community draws the residents.  At our

         14  main site, at 184 Eldridge Street, if you go through

         15  that building at any given point during the day, you

         16  will see under five year old toddlers primarily

         17  Asian.  These are the families that are utilizing

         18  those services from that segment of the community.

         19  If you go two blocks north to my older adults

         20  program, you will see the population is

         21  significantly Latino, but with an increasing

         22  population of Asian.  So, depending on the program,

         23  there is a mix.

         24                 Now, our child care mental health

         25  programs which span the entire borough, have a wide
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          2  range of ethnic reach outs in terms of African

          3  American communities, as well as different Hispanic

          4  groups.  So it depends where we are located.

          5                 We acknowledge, and I think we have

          6  become rather expert, at the ability of delivering

          7  services in the community, because through Home-

          8  Based Crisis Services and through our Blended Case

          9  Management, we are practice at going into the

         10  community, into the home, and reaching out to the

         11  parents and the families.  In some ways, we have

         12  done some of this work already, because our

         13  obligation when we meet with the youngster who has

         14  been identified as having a psychiatric problem who

         15  qualifies for Blended Case Management services, is

         16  we do not only treat the child, we treat the family.

         17    And within that family, of course there are the

         18  care givers, but also there are younger siblings.

         19  So it is not unusual for us to come into contact

         20  with the under five population, and given the fact

         21  that our staff practice in this area, we then

         22  coordinate with the family, how do you develop

         23  services that will address the needs of the other

         24  members in addition to the so called identified

         25  patient?  Because we know all this creates a
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          2  tremendous stress on that child who technically is

          3  our client.  But the whole family is our client.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council Member

          5  Brewer have a question and I do not know if Council

          6  Member Stewart have a question, but Council Member

          7  Brewer, proceed.  I need to go for one minute

          8  outside of here and I be back.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         10  much.  Because you both have incredibly extensive

         11  City- wide experience in our delivery of human

         12  services, I am just wondering, if you had your

         13  druthers in terms of the expansion of the under five

         14  funding for mental health services, what would that

         15  look like?  Obviously it is our experience in the

         16  schools later on, be they Pre K or even older, there

         17  are a lot of challenges and I am hoping that if we

         18  had an early, early intervention, maybe the school

         19  issues would be less apparent.  You know, you have

         20  got 37- 38 students now in some of these classes in

         21  the middle school, hopefully not in the lower

         22  grades, and obviously a shortage of professionals in

         23  the classroom. So the 11, sometimes 11 percent of

         24  young people with challenges, not that we do not all

         25  have challenges, but more than some of the other
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          2  students, is really number one, in terms of a

          3  concern.  So early intervention makes sense.  How

          4  would you see this as a more of a City- wide

          5  program, if you had your druthers?

          6                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: I will begin and

          7  then you can -- I think that what has been said

          8  before in terms of providing education for

          9  practitioners, is very important.  I think that

         10  teachers, people who work in child care settings,

         11  child care providers, whether they are day care

         12  providers or family day care, and you know, of

         13  course, parents, how to identify, how to tell early

         14  warning things that happen that you should identify

         15  as early warning things.  I think that we do not

         16  think of you know, certainly pediatricians should be

         17  trained to identify those early warning signals.

         18  But I think all kinds of other people are coming in

         19  touch with very young children, should too.  And

         20  teachers, you know, it is crucial.  I mean, what we

         21  see is that they do not receive enough training or

         22  any training in classroom management. And so when

         23  somebody is disruptive, it becomes you know, all

         24  they want to do is make sure that that disruption

         25  leaves the classroom. And they do not necessarily
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          2  deal with it in the best way.  So I think training

          3  and awareness is very important.  I think we work

          4  mostly, we work a lot with adolescents.  That is a

          5  primary population we deal with.  And introducing

          6  the notions of parenting and responsible parenting

          7  fairly early on, especially to young, not to just

          8  young women, young men as well.  But you know, begin

          9  to prepare them for their adult roles early on, so

         10  that awareness is there.  And that does not happen.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I do not know

         12  if he wants to come --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Andy?

         14                 MR. TOBING: And I think it is a very

         15  important question because I think the whole issue

         16  of training for professionals, professional care

         17  givers, whether they be teachers or social workers

         18  or psychologists or pediatricians, this certainly is

         19  important to the ability to provide funding to

         20  enhance that training and make it available, and in

         21  some cases mandatory, becomes very much essential.

         22  From our own personal experiences at the Settlement,

         23  our case managers have been able to coordinate the

         24  care that our youngsters receive.  So they will go

         25  into the clinics and they will go into the schools.
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          2  And very often they become an ally to the

          3  instructional staff, in terms of how to deal with

          4  the particular behavioral issues that are manifested

          5  by this acting out child.  If that, in turn could

          6  also be expanded, that would have a significant

          7  impact, as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Andy?

         11                 MR. WALLACE: Good morning.  Had one

         12  question for Safe Space.  The description that you

         13  gave of the populations serving in Manhattan, I

         14  believe you said, elderly and --

         15                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: I think elderly

         16  was my colleague.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, that was --

         18                 MR. WALLACE: Okay.  Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: What do you think

         20  about the idea of increasing the age on the

         21  initiative?  Instead of being five to zero, making

         22  it a bigger, like ten to zero?  And look into

         23  expanding the age of services under this.

         24                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: We had initially

         25  thought of zero to eight because we felt that that
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          2  would be a good appropriate range.  I think the only

          3  thing to warrant against that, is that because I

          4  think the zero to five is a very difficult

          5  population. The five to eight would overwhelm the

          6  utilization.  So I think you should think in terms

          7  of expanding it.  I think it is good to begin zero

          8  to five and expand the capacity of people --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Eventually.  Okay.

         10    The reason I am asking the question is because you

         11  guys have to take ownership of this.  You cannot let

         12  this funding disappear.  You need to be in charge of

         13  this next year.  I am not going to be here.  I will

         14  be available to, you know, fight for it, but you

         15  need to make sure that this funding does not

         16  disappear.  Now that we begin this initiative, this

         17  shall be streamlined, institutionalized.  It should

         18  not be ignored, the reality that these children

         19  desperately need these services.  And that is the

         20  reason I asked the question. If you think that the

         21  expansion of the initiative to ten years would be

         22  appropriate.  Because I have seen the effect on that

         23  range, between zero to ten.  That is what I have

         24  been witnessing.              In regard of the

         25  community where University Settlement is located,
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          2  the Lower Manhattan part do not have what I call

          3  appropriate services in the cases of domestic

          4  violence  And I want to understand how you reaching

          5  out to that particular community when we do not have

          6  the services in our communities?

          7                 MR. TOBING: That has been a

          8  significant struggle in my tenure at the Settlement.

          9    And we have tried to approach it from various

         10  angles.  We have just received funding through our

         11  own foundation writing.  Extensive three year

         12  funding to actually provide domestic violence

         13  services through our Project Home component.  We

         14  will be working with the families who come to our

         15  attention and also outreaching to those families.

         16  And Doctor Paoli mentioned Connect, we are also

         17  contracting with them for training so that we will

         18  become experts in the delivery of domestic violence

         19  services.

         20                 Certainly in our other mental health

         21  portfolio, we deal with domestic violence issues,

         22  but --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, but I am not

         24  talking about that.  I am not talking about the

         25  portfolio that you have treating people with mental
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          2  health issues.  I am talking specifically directly

          3  to domestic violence population, because I know that

          4  the Lower Manhattan part is under served on this

          5  issue, and I know that the issue go from East to

          6  West of the island and I do not like it.

          7                 MR. TOBING: And we certainly agree

          8  with you.  And it is through this special funding

          9  through the Viola Bernard Foundation, that we have

         10  identified that we are creating and crafting a

         11  program exclusively for domestic violence services.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You know what is

         13  so distressful to me.  The two major cases on

         14  domestic violence that called the attention of the

         15  entire New York City area happened in the Lower

         16  Manhattan part.  The two little children that were

         17  murdered by the abuser, comes from our communities

         18  down here.  One in the west and one in the east.

         19  And we do not have domestic violence programs in our

         20  area.  Is that not incredible?  I wonder why the

         21  children that were killed, were killed down here in

         22  this area?  I wonder why?  It has something to do

         23  with that.

         24                 Then I am interested in making sure

         25  that they bring some kind of resolution or help to
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          2  this aspect of the domestic violence aspect.  And I

          3  am glad that you are in conversations with them.  If

          4  I can be helpful in that, you let me know.  Then I

          5  would be more than interested in helping.  Connect

          6  got some allocations for money in the council to

          7  expand services.  And I have been monitoring the

          8  expanding of the services into my community through

          9  the initiative that was put in place.  And

         10  hopefully, we are going to have some money for

         11  domestic violence down in this area.

         12                 Council Member Gennaro, can you

         13  introduce yourself? Oh, he is not here, I am sorry.

         14  Yes.  I am sorry.  I misunderstood the --

         15                 I want to ask you, if you please can

         16  become acquaintance and go and visit the program in

         17  the Bronx.   That is very important for me because

         18  that was the first program that I pushed together.

         19  And that model that had been put in there, I think

         20  it is very important for us to look at it and

         21  replicate it. I know that you have basically the

         22  capacity to do that, but it is a very particular

         23  interest that I have on this in the pediatric

         24  component that they have.  Now Connect have that

         25  component also, because they are connected to the
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          2  hospital and that facilitate it in that regard.  But

          3  I am very interested in the three of you getting

          4  together and talk to each other to see if we can

          5  replicate this in the other parts.  I do not want

          6  the Bronx to be the only beneficiary of this great

          7  invention and idea.  I would like that we do not

          8  need this program at all anywhere and to eliminate

          9  this problem as a social problem, but it exists.  It

         10  is real.  We should look at it and we should resolve

         11  it.  Then if you can do that, I will appreciate that

         12  tremendously.

         13                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: We would love to

         14  do that.  In fact, --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can, and can you

         16  cooperate with each other and make me happy that

         17  way?  I will be very satisfied.

         18                 MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI: Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Do you have any

         20  questions for me?             MS. BARRIOS- PAOLI:

         21  No, I am very grateful for the funding and I would

         22  really like you to know that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You do not need to

         24  thank me, none of you.

         25                 MR. TOBING: But we are committed to
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          2  see this as an ongoing initiative because we are not

          3  going to be able to resolve this in the space of one

          4  year.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You do not need to

          6  thank me, but I am going to ask a favor from

          7  everyone.  Unless somebody take the bull by the

          8  horns, this thing is not happening.  And it has to

          9  be somebody who fight and does not accept no for an

         10  answer.  You need to identify somebody in the

         11  council that is going to do that.  And that is going

         12  to fight for mental health in this council.  Because

         13  sometime mental health and substance abuse is the

         14  step child that nobody want to deal with.  Our

         15  society have a problem, a serious problem with

         16  substance abuse, with domestic violence.  And the

         17  problem is not the use of the substance and it is

         18  not the domestic violence.  It is that we want to

         19  lie about it.  We want to pretend that it does not

         20  exist and we want to say to the whole world, oh no,

         21  that problem does not happen in America.  And as

         22  soon as we stop this secret, the nasty secret, that

         23  domestic violence is rampant, that children are

         24  abused and that substance abuse is here and it is

         25  connected to the domestic violence that we witness,
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          2  as soon as we do that, we are going to be better

          3  off.

          4                 Then I am going to beg you to be on

          5  top of this funding, to fight for it, and to

          6  identify somebody in the council that you are going

          7  to make responsible to carry your message.  It has

          8  to be somebody here who will take over this issue.

          9  And if not, we need to force that person to take

         10  over this issue.  Then I want you to promise me that

         11  you are going to do that and I will leave the

         12  council very happy if that promise is in place.  Can

         13  I count on you?

         14                 MS. BARRIO- PAOLI: Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.  Now, I

         16  want to say thank you to the administration for

         17  moving forward with this and being so much a partner

         18  with me on this and for being so helpful in putting

         19  this together.  When I went to the administration

         20  they were more than willing to embrace this idea

         21  which was very good, it make it easier than

         22  difficult.  And I want to thank all of you for

         23  taking the challenge, because I know that sometime

         24  funding coming is not necessarily a good news.

         25  Because the consequences of the funding, then you
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          2  have to deal with it and to put the program in

          3  place.  Then I want to thank you for being willing

          4  to accept the challenge of accepting the funding and

          5  putting the program together.

          6                 God bless you, and I am going to

          7  leave the vote open for the next half hour.  Thank

          8  you very much.  This hearing is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 11:50 a.m.)
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